IN THE UNI TED STATES COURT OF APPEALS
FOR THE FI FTH Cl RCU T

No. 96-40440
Summary Cal endar

UNI TED STATES OF AMERI CA,
Pl ai ntiff-Appellee,
vVer sus
MARLON LEKEI TH W LLI AVS,
Def endant - Appel | ant.

Appeal fromthe United States District Court for the
Eastern District of Texas
USDC No. 6:95-CR-36-42

March 14, 1997
Bef ore GARWOOD, JOLLY, and DENNI'S, G rcuit Judges.

PER CURI AM *

Marl on Lekeith WIlians appeal s his sentence for conspiracy to
manuf act ure, possessionwithintent todistribute, and distribution
of cocaine base in violation of 21 U.S.C. 88 841(a)(1) and 846. He
argues that the governnent failed to prove that the cocai ne base
was “crack” rather than another form of cocaine base, that the

district <court <erred in calculating the anmount of drugs

"Pursuant to Local Rule 47.5, the court has determ ned that
this opinion should not be published and is not precedent except
under the Ilimted circunstances set forth in Local Rule 47.5. 4.



attributable to him and that the district court m scal cul ated his

crimnal history category.

The Presentence I nvestigation Report (“PSR’) attributed 50. 64
grans of cocaine base to Wllians. WIIlians objected to the anount
of drugs attributable to himbut apparently offered no evidence in
support of his assertion that the stated anobunt was unwarranted in

the light of the evidence. See United States v. Alfaro, 919 F. 2d

962, 966 (5th Cr. 1990) (holding that “unsworn assertions do not
bear ‘sufficient indiciaof reliability to support [their] probable
accuracy,’ and, therefore, should not generally be considered by
the trial court in nmaking its factual findings” under sentencing
guidelines but that “presentence report[s] generally bear][]
sufficient indicia of reliability” for that purpose). WIIlians
again asserts, before this court, that the PSR attributed to him
excessive quantities of cocaine base. WIIlians, however, fails to
point to any probative evidence denonstrating that the district
court clearly erred in adopting the PSR recommendati on. |nstead,
he nerely asserts that the testinony of his co-conspirator, who
attributed approximately fifteen of the fifty plus grans of cocaine
base to him was uncorroborated and unreliable. On this basis, we
cannot say that the decision of the trial court to adopt the PSR

was clearly erroneous. See Alfaro, 919 F.2d at 965-66; see also




United States v. Sherbak, 950 F.2d 1095, 1099-1100 (5th G r. 1992)

(holding “when a defendant objects to his PSR but offers no
rebuttal evidence to refute the facts, the district court is free
to adopt the facts in the PSR wthout further inquiry”).
Furthernmore, WIllians pleaded guilty to an offense that he
acknow edged carried a statutory nmandatory m ni mumsentence of ten
years. He does not contest the validity of that plea and cannot
therefore contest the mandatory sentence i nposed.

Wllianms pleaded guilty to conspiracy to possess and
di stribute cocaine base in violation of 21 U S. C § 846. He did
not object at the district court to the classification of the
subst ance i nvol ved as cocai ne base. On appeal, however, WIIlians
argues that his sentence was erroneously based upon the sentencing
gui delines for “crack” cocai ne, which he contends do not apply to
all forns of cocaine base. WIIlians, however, was sentenced to the
statutory mninmum sentence for violations of 21 US C 8§ 846
involving 50 or nore granms of a substance or m xture containing

cocai ne base. See 21 U.S.C. 8 841(b)(1)(A). Thus, the statutory

m ni mum sentence applies to the offense to which WIllians pl eaded
guilty, and the distinction between “crack” cocaine and other

cocai ne bases is not relevant. See United States v. Janes, 78 F. 3d

851, 858 (3d Gir. 1996).



The trial court sentenced WIllians wunder 21 U S C
8§ 841(b)(1)(A), which requires a mandatory m ni nrum sentence of ten
years for violations of 8§ 841(a) or 8 846 involving 50 grans or
nmore of a substance or m xture containing cocaine base. WIIlians
recei ved t he mandatory m ni nrumsentence for the of fense to which he
pl eaded guilty and thus, any error in the calculation of his

crimnal history category is harm ess. See Wllians v. United

States, 503 U.S. 193, 203 (1992); Fed. R Crim P. 52(a); U S.S. G
§ 5GL. 1(b).
AFFI RMED.



